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LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  You are Mr. Paris?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, I am, sir.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  It is your application?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, it is.  Do I start?  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  You start and it is probably m ore convenient 

if you stand but if you find you have notes in fron t of you 

that you cannot use if you stand, you can remain se ated. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  I will remain seated as it is eas ier if it is in 

front of me. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  First of all, sir, we would like to submit to 

the court that this, actually, I am puzzled as to w hy the 

respondents are here because ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Do not worry about that, they are entitled to 

be here.  It is not a secret court. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  No, I know it is not a secret cou rt. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Just get on with it. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Okay.  We would like to submit to  the court that 

this case is in the interests of justice and in the  greater 

public interest and because of this we would like t he court to 

consider the request for costs protection as mentio ned in our 

skeleton argument.  

We would like to question the fact that, is it the 

purpose of the British courts to take the home from  a family 

who have achieved agency against bullying?  Our sit uation 
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began with the bullying of our children and since 2 011 we have 

been subject to a hate campaign for standing up for  ourselves 

and for other parents, on behalf of other parents.  

It is not exaggerating to say that our family now l ives 

in fear.  We are both on antidepressants, we suffer  numerous 

effects of stress, including lack of sleep, anxiety , loss of 

confidence, loss of income, depression, erm, and do es the 

court really believe that what has happened to us f or standing 

up for our and our children's rights is reasonable and 

proportionate?  

These effects which are known to be the result of s uch 

course of conduct, were all happening since 2011, w ell before 

the punitive costs order that we have now been subj ected to, 

and a costs order that the sale of our children's h ome would 

not even cover so which means that we will have to give these 

people our forwarding address, whichever address it  is, and 

find some money from somewhere else to carry on pay ing them, 

for them having covertly harassed us.

The cost order, please, should be put aside as a ma tter 

of urgency and we appeal to your Lordship for costs  protection 

going forward because we feel that the human rights  settlement 

we have concerning agency for bullying is worth pro tecting. 

Regarding the case, there are too many misdirection s for 

the judgment to be safe.  Of course, as you can see , we are 

representing ourselves, we have ---- 
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LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  You represented yourselves in front of the 

judge as I understand it?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  That is correct, yes.  Just yeste rday we had an 

opportunity to get legal representation but he coul d not come 

today and we asked for an adjournment but ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I am afraid I refused the adjo urnment.  Your 

application was put on urgently and the court has m ade this 

date available so we must stick with that I am afra id.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes.  So, there are various point s we would like 

to bring up but I guess is also depends, I mean, I assume you 

have read the documents that we have provided?  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Is there anything within that tha t you feel that 

we need to expand on?  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  The starting point is the judg ment. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  And your speaking note or subm issions for the 

oral hearing, the judge heard evidence over five da ys, he 

formed views about the witnesses, in particular the  claimants 

and the defendants.  He set out the background whic h all 

started with what might be regarded as a relatively  trivial 

incident in France some time ago.  He then, perhaps  

anonymously, deals with the extent of publication w hich 

normally would come at the end of a libel judgment but perhaps 

that does not matter, he deals with that.  That is the first 
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point, the extent of publication.  

Then he deals with meaning, the meaning of the five  

separate publications that he identifies which were  the 

original claim.  Then the defence justification, wh ether they 

were substantially true, then qualified privilege a nd then 

malice which is the answer to the defence for quali fied 

privilege.  He never got around to the question of damages.  

So those are really the points you need to focus on , 

whether there are arguable grounds for saying that he was 

wrong in relation to those various points.

SECOND APPLICANT:  Excuse me, your Honour, I am the  other 

appellant.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That is fine.  I think as long  as you take 

turns and do not speak at the same time. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Part of our appeal is that we wi sh to appeal 

his judgment of the pre-trial review which we did n ot appeal 

at the time because of what he said in it, which wa s that he 

would examine the course of conduct that he identif ied and 

allow us to use that to dismantle qualified privile ge.  But, 

as we have submitted in the transcript, clearly we were 

stopped from doing that at the point where we were going to 

prove that this accusation that was said that we ha d written 

to journalists making this scurrilous accusation, w hich we had 

never made at all, and that email does not exist.  At the 

point where we were about to prove that we were int errupted 
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and told that we couldn't do that because we were n ot, we did 

not have claims in harassment.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  As I understand, there were or iginally claims 

for harassment, they came out and then you sought t o 

reintroduce them at a pre-trial hearing and the jud ge refused 

that. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  During our research we discovere d that, you 

know, I mean, last week that the CPS made an announ cement of 

new guidelines regarding covert harassment, it is v ery, very 

difficult to  ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Let us leave aside the CPS for  the moment 

because, as you probably know, harassment consists both in a 

civil form and a criminal form and they are obvious ly dealing 

with the criminal side of it.  The point that may b e taken 

against you is that if you wanted to reintroduce ha rassment as 

part of your claim you should have appealed the jud ge's 

decision at that point and you are now out of time.  

SECOND APPLICANT:  But the reason we did not do tha t was because 

the judge said we would be able to examine that cou rse of 

conduct in relation to their defence of qualified p rivilege 

and the defamation, but then when it came to that h e said, no, 

you can't do that because you have not got harassme nt ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  There is certainly a considera ble amount of 

cross-examination on the question of malice, one ca n see that 

from the papers and, indeed, from the judgment. 
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SECOND APPLICANT:  Interestingly though, the points  that we 

actually did prove are not there. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That is a question of whether it is relevant 

are not.  Anyway, let us not lose sight of some sor t of 

structure to your submissions.  I think we were goi ng to start 

with the publications, the five heads of publicatio n if I can 

put it that way, variously publications by the firs t 

defendant, the second defendant.  What do you want to say 

about that?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Actually, your Honour, if I may, is it possible 

to talk about qualified privilege?  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes, you can make your submiss ions in any 

form you like. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Okay, thank you, sir.  One thing that I want to 

bring out, it is kind of relevant to all this but i t is the 

fact that at the pre-trial review the judge correct ly 

identified our claim which was, and I quote from th e detailed 

judgment, that we were making allegations that the respondent: 

"'Covertly inciting organisations and individuals t o shun the 

Claimants [applicants] by portraying them as danger ous and 

mentally unstable.' I could, by going through the 2 4 pages of 

appendices, pick out a number of obvious candidates  for this 

...". 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  The allegation is against whom ?  

SECOND APPLICANT:  The respondents. 
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FIRST APPLICANT:  The respondents. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Both of them?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes.  He could see through the ex amples to 

disclosure that we had showed him, that he could pi ck a number 

of examples of the respondents enticing organisatio ns and 

individuals to shun us by portraying us as dangerou s and 

mentally unstable.  In his final judgment he repeat ed multiple 

times that our claim was in fact that the responden ts were 

engaging in a campaign encouraging others to publis h remarks, 

critical or defamatory of the claimants.  He said t hat 

multiple times.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That was your claim. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  It is not the same thing. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  The claim is, let us not lose sight of it, 

the claim is in relation to five publications. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, that the respondents made.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  This was that they were encouragi ng others to 

shun us and not to encourage others to attack us.  He said all 

the way through, I cannot find that there are any i nvitations 

to encourage others to publish anything in respect of the 

second claimant.  This was what the judge had ident ified at 

the PTR when we tried to put the harassment back in .  There is 

a world of difference between encouraging others to  shun you 

because you are dangerous to encouraging others to attack you.  
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That was never our claim.  What was even more baffl ing is that 

in his judgment at paragraph 245 ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Let us have a look at that.  Y es. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  He uses multiple examples, includ ing like the 

last ones, whatever he says now "Roger will be a bi t shaken". 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Hold on, I am not sure I have this, 

paragraph 245?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, paragraph 245 of the judgmen t. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes, it is divided into two or  possibly 

three. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  It is the first section, the last  bit of the 

first section. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I am going to read this again.   (Pause) Yes. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  These where examples of warning o thers, on 

warning them not to have, and inciting them not to have 

anything to do us which was what he identified at t he PTR and 

not what he then said was our claim.  We never said  the 

enticement was to attack us.  It said, well, our ma in claim 

was that they were telling others that we were dang erous.  

Like, for example, when the second respondent told somebody 

that Angel has a clinical diagnosis, a clinical jud gment 

borderline personality disorder. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes, that is at paragraph 248.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Actually paragraph 248 is not eve rything there.  

Actually what the judge has not quoted is probably the most 
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damning one which we have in our bundle with our sk eleton 

which is on page 296 of our skeleton if you have it .  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I will just make sure.  (Pause) I am not sure 

I have that.  Is it in the appeal bundle? 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  It is an exhibit, is it, tab 1 1?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, in the exhibit, yes.  I have  a copy right 

here. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I think I have it.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  This is just an example but it sa ys that Angel 

has a personality disorder, this is a clinical judg ment, not a 

personal opinion, it is not simply depression, it m akes her 

very dangerous.  Angel has no such thing. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Let us check.  This is from wh om to whom?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  This is from the second responden t to ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  The second defendant, yes, to whom?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  To a friend of hers. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Who did not want to shun us, you r Honour.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Who is it addressed to?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Sam. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  To Sam who?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  The name was withheld. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Right, okay.  

SECOND APPLICANT:  It was somebody that we had had a small 

communication with and she said that she had tried to persuade 
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the second respondent out of her course of conduct and that 

she had been unwilling to be persuaded out of it. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Right. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Essentially when people essential ly do not tow 

the line the second respondent was telling her outr ight lies.  

This is not like a personal belief, she was telling  them there 

was a clinical judgment which made Ms. Garden a dan ger to 

people around her. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That is the matter that is dea lt with in 248, 

is it not?  The judge at 247 says that these were m atters of 

cross-examination. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, but ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Excuse me, your Honour ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I think we will have one at a time.  You can 

come in later if you want.  So do you have 247?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, I have 247 right here, your Honour.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  The defendant agreed that she had been in 

contact with a number of individuals and offered th em warnings 

or caution in respect of the claimants.  Then at 24 8 a 

repeated complaint of the claimants has been that t he second 

defendant promoted smears about their mental health .  That is 

exactly what you have shown me and described the se cond 

claimant as mad or nuts and so on.  Then there is a n 

illustrative interest, a reference to the particula r email of 

10th May, it is not the one you have shown me, 2012 , but it is 
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quite clear that the judge did have this in mind an d dealt 

with it. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Except that he said it was her be lief, that 

because it was her belief it was okay for her to sa y that to 

others. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  No, it is not a question of wh ether it is 

okay.  Its relevance is whether it shows malice. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Surely if she tells somebody that  somebody has a 

clinical judgment that makes her a dangerous person  and 

therefore must be avoided, when it is completely un true, that 

has to be malicious?  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That is your submission. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  That is one of my submissions. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Your Honour, can we further subm it that in the 

transcript of that part of the trial, where the sec ond 

respondent's husband was admitting that the diagnos is of 

borderline personality disorder is a risk diagnosis , the judge 

interrupted him and said, well, it is not a questio n of 

whether there is a clinical judgment or not, well, clearly in 

a defamation trial it is, that is why ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  No, no, I think we are getting  confused here 

or at the risk of getting confused.  The second def endant's 

husband was formally a party to the proceedings, wa s he not?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, he was. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Then he came out.  He was a do ctor, he was an 
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academic doctor, was he not?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  He still is, yes. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  So he was not there to give op inion evidence 

about diagnosis and it seems to me that that may be  a 

difficulty in trying to elicit evidence from him. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  I think he was just making a sta tement which 

everybody knows that borderline personality disorde r is a risk 

diagnosis.  That was not clinical evidence. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Ok.

FIRST APPLICANT:  He also agreed that, to use his c redentials next 

to that would strengthen the belief, or whoever it has been 

told that that is true, he also agreed to that.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  What I do not understand is, if it not a 

question, I mean if it goes to defamation to the ex tent of 

crossing the world to do a defamation trial and som ebody has 

told somebody something about you that is not true,  that is a 

risk diagnosis that means people will shun you, it is not in 

the judgment the fact that she did actually say tha t to one 

person at least and she said in court that a lot of  her 

warning was not even on email, it was by ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Ms. Garden, it is dealt with i n the judgment, 

in the passages I have just shown you. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  He did not quote it, my Lord. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Well, he quoted a considerable  amount of 
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material. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  He quoted everything that did no t say that. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  What he says ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  But he ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Just one moment. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Sorry. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  We have looked at it.  It star ts at 245, we 

have looked at the passage at 248.  We have looked at the 

reference to cross-examination 247, and at 249 he s ays that 

these private communications are undoubtedly strong ly 

disparaging of the second claimant.  At 250 he goes  on to say 

that he has read with care both the material which the 

claimants submit is particularly important and othe r material 

to which reference has been made.  He can't be expe cted to 

deal with each and every point because the relevanc e of all 

this was to defeat the defence of qualified privile ge in 

relation to a quite limited amount of material. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  We do understand that.  We under stood that a 

matter of defamation had to be looked at against th e objective 

facts that there were at the time which are that I did not 

have any such diagnosis.  Therefore, if she is goin g around 

telling lots of people that I have and that is a di agnosis 

which goes to my personal integrity and will cause people to 

shun me, as in the case recently of Tim Yeo v Times 

Newspapers, this was why it was deemed that it was not 
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defamatory because it was not going to personal int egrity.  

This has had a marked effect on our life.  People h ave come up 

to us, the reason we knew this was happening in the  background 

is because of the amount of people who came up and said, "you 

are nutters, you are completely mad.  You are delus ional".  

Where did they get that idea from?  I did not know them.  

By ignoring the one time in the actual emails where  she 

did tell somebody there was a clinical judgment and  saying in 

court it is not a question of whether there was a c linical 

judgment or not, we submit that the judge misdirect ed himself 

in saying that it was not a question of whether the re was a 

clinical judgment.  

If the court needs me to submit myself to an examin ation 

of a doctor to prove that, I am quite willing to do  it.  I do 

not think you would like it or anybody, if somebody  went 

around telling somebody that you were a danger to y ourself and 

other people.  That is defamation, it has to be oth erwise 

nothing is.  If anyone can say that about anybody t hen ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Ms. Garden, we are getting awa y from the 

matters of specific complaint here. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  That is, with respect, that is a  matter ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  No, no, the matters of complai nt in the 

defamatory publications. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  With respect, your Honour, that is a defamatory 

publication but it was not one that we would bring up as a 
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head of claim because we did not know about it at t hat time. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Right, okay. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Which is why we tried to re-put the harassment 

claims in, because covert harassment is very diffic ult to deal 

with.  When it comes out in a huge disclosure as it  did in 

this case, it should have been allowed to be re-inc luded.  Had 

we known that the judge did not mean his promise to  thoroughly 

take that into consideration, we would have appeale d the PTR 

but he promised us that he would not.  Then when it  went to 

trial he changed the case.  It is a case that was n ot our 

case. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Another matter that we want to br ing up is the 

fact that the judge overlooked a lot of the things that they 

did covertly which were attacks upon us because acc ording to 

Gatley, if A publishes words which B considers defa me him and 

B publishes a response in self-defence and A then p ublishes 

further defamatory material, perfectly by way of a rejoinder 

to B's response, it has been held in Australia that  A's second 

publication is not protected by qualified privilege  because it 

would inhibit B's right of self-defence since by ex ercising it 

would be laying himself open to further privileged attack. 

Second, assuming the original attack to be unjustif ied ----

SECOND APPLICANT:  To be justified.

FIRST APPLICANT:  No, the original attack was unjus tified and 
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republication was unjustified.

SECOND APPLICANT:  Sorry.

FIRST APPLICANT:  A would be gaining benefit from h is own wrong.  

We submit that the respondents are gaining benefit from their 

own wrong by ignoring all the covert attacks they h ave done 

upon us because the judge has essentially ... Where as he said 

at the PTR that the essence of the tort is of direc t effect 

upon a claimant regarding harassment he never reall y asked the 

question of the effect that this had on us. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I think he said that the haras sment had come 

from your side initially. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, exactly, because you ignore all the attacks 

that happened beforehand.  As an example, in the or iginal 

public attack that we suffered the judge states tha t the 

second respondent wrote two emails before the attac k and two 

emails near the end of the attack.  Whereas in fact , during 

the entire attack the second respondent sent 28 ema ils, 

fanning the flames of the attacks that were happeni ng 

publicly.  She was doing it all covertly and feedin g them 

misinformation and ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I think we are going back to t he point we 

have just left. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Well, the point is the fact that by ignoring, I 

was quoting Gatley, by ignoring the first, which is  A 

publishes words which B considers defaming, by igno ring this 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

18

because it was covert, our publications to defend o urselves 

are now viewed as attacks upon the respondents and,  therefore, 

their response to that are replies to attack wherea s in fact 

they should be retorts.  Retorts are not given the right of 

qualified privilege. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I understand.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  So, there is one other point rega rding the first 

respondent which led to his publication on Posterou s.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That was the first matter of c omplaint, the 

earliest, 9th November. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Exactly.  That said it was a repl y to an attack 

which was us writing to him saying, "you have to st op this", 

whereas in fact the reason we wrote to the first re spondent 

was because we had been given communication that he  had given 

to a third party where he was attacking us telling that person 

that we had malice of heart, we were spreading horr ible lies, 

essentially ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  The judge found he did not wan t to publish 

your material. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes; no, this was months later.  We, erm, what 

happened is before the publication on Posterous we received a 

few days before a communication that showed us, a 

communication that the first respondent had to a th ird party 

wherein he attacked us.  Our writing to the first r espondent 

was us responding to that attack and saying, "you c an't say 
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these things privately to other people and defaming  us" and, 

therefore, his publication on Posterous was a retor t.  It was 

not a reply to attack.  It was a retort. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  So the same thing applies here.  There was ... 

again this is in Gatley, I mean, if ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  He had made the attack. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  He had made the attack.  We were responding to 

it.  He ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  What is it that you are compla ining about?  

There are ---- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  That is ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Just one moment, there are two  aspects of 

this.  The first is the words that they claim their  children 

were expelled because they were being bullied, I un derstand 

the school to say that it was because the parents' behaviour.  

That is the first.  

Then the second one is, "since February I have igno red 

and filtered out their constant harassment of my bl og tweet 

and video both of myself and of others."  So we are  talking 

about the second complaint. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  That was part of the whole public ation.  I mean, 

I am ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  We cannot go into the whole pu blication.  

Those are the two matters of complaint. 
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FIRST APPLICANT:  What I am saying is that that pub lication was a 

retort, not a reply to attack. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I see.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Because he had attacked us privat ely, we got 

hold of that.  So we are responding to him and told  him, 

because if he was attacking us, writing to a strang er to him, 

somebody he did not know, we said, "well, if he so casually 

attacks us to a complete stranger he must easily be  doing it 

to people he knows".  So, then we wrote him and sai d, "you 

have got to stop doing this and let us deal with th is".  Then 

he published that publication which was first compl ained of.

So, that is publication is not a reply to attack, i t is 

a retort.  So by it being a retort it should not be  granted 

qualified privilege. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  It is plain that that is a misdi rection, your 

Honour.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay.  

SECOND APPLICANT:  We are at a great disadvantage i f we cannot 

bring the course of conduct of the defendants up be cause of 

the fact that we were led to trial on the basis tha t it was 

going to be looked at and then it was changed into something 

that it just was not. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That is a point I understand a nd you have 

made that already. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  What that means is that if the j udgment is 
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allowed to stand it means that people can be covert ly attacked 

and they cannot do anything about it.  Quite simply , if they 

defend themselves it will be seen that they are att acking only 

by cloak of darkness because the original course of  conduct is 

secret.  Therefore, anything you do can be pointed to as being 

really problematic and then retorts can come and th ey can pose 

as replies to attack all over the place.  That is w hat has 

happened here.  If this is allowed to stand it can happen to 

anybody, your Honour.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  All we were asking these people to do was to 

openly debate issues which they claim and seek infl uence on 

and which we had a legitimate interest in as is sho wn by the 

fact that this landmark settlement is something tha t seeks to 

address a problem which ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I am not sure what you are tal king about 

Ms. Garden. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Well, the Titirangi settlement, soon after 

which the first defendant republished his blog post  which the 

judge has allowed that says that we are in dispute with the 

Steiner School.  We are not.  It says that we claim  there was 

bullying.  In fact the school acknowledged that our  child's 

accounts of bullying were honest.  So, it is comple tely 

prejudicial to her.  It rubbishes something that ha s been the 

subject of respectable enquiry.  
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So the fact that Judge Seys Llewellyn excused this 

publication on the basis that it was not made consc iously.  He 

said in his judgment that there was no question, it  was not 

questioned in court that the first respondent had m oved it in 

common with all his other material from Posterous.  Well, it 

was not questioned because that was not his case.  In his 

witness statement he said, erm, that he had, er, th e claimants 

objected to certain sections of the blog post which  was 

originally posted on Posterous and subsequently mov ed to 

Quackometer in April 2013 "when I migrated some of the posts 

in Posterous".  This was represented in the judgmen t as him 

having moved all of them and he did not.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  He selectively chose to move that  one and let 

others die. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  And that was the reason, because  there was no 

publication it could not be defamatory.  My Lord, h ow can it 

not be defamatory to publish something saying you a re in 

dispute with the Steiner School when you have just got a 

landmark human rights settlement?  It is crazy. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  It also goes against what was fou nd in Flood v 

Times where it says that publishers have a responsibilit y to 

update their articles because people who visit them  after the 

date they were written may assume that ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I think we are getting slightl y away from the 

point, which is your attack on the judgment.  That seems to me 
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to be an after thought. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  It is not an after thought, we me ntioned this in 

our closing a few times because it is, the second r espondent 

considers himself a publisher.  He has said so on a  number of 

occasions and because we are in this internet age, everybody 

is a publisher, not just journalists and newspapers .  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  There is no issue that these a re publications 

for the purposes of the ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  I am sorry, my Lord, I do not un derstand why, 

it seems to me this is probably the most relevant p oint for 

appeal because if the judge said that it was not de famatory 

because it was not published and in fact it was pub lished, he 

said it was not published because it was ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Which one are we talking about ?  Are we 

talking about the first one?  

SECOND APPLICANT:  The second publication. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  The second publication, the one t hat ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  You do not mean the second pub lication, you 

mean the first publication republished, do you not?   

SECOND APPLICANT:  The republication, sorry.  You k now that that 

was why, because earlier on in his judgment he said  that the 

first time that this was published it was not defam atory 

because there had not been an issue from the human rights 

process. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That is right. 
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SECOND APPLICANT:  The second time it was published  he said it was 

not ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  When was it published subseque ntly?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  In April 2013 I think. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That is the subsequent reposti ng on the 

Quackometer blog, is it?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Correct. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Correct. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  When is that?  

SECOND APPLICANT:  April 2013. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  We had achieved a settlement at the end of the 

year before, we published about it and it had been on the 

television and in the newspaper in New Zealand and the first 

respondent has admitted that he did know about it w hen he 

republished his article and chose to republish it n ot in a 

bulk publication, so therefore he did publish somet hing that 

he knew to be false. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  We do not understand how the jud ge made that 

mistake because we did actually talk about it in co urt and he 

was questioned about it and it is written in his wi tness 

statement that he did not, that he did, I mean real ly, even if 

he did move them all over he still did that so that  is still, 

so that is still republishing them but the fact tha t he did 
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not move all the material from one site to another shows that 

he must have chosen to do it.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  The judge said he did not. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Flood v Times says that the publisher has a 

responsibility to update his article if something n ew comes 

along. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  I am afraid we are very hamstrun g by not being 

able to refer to their course of conduct due to the  fact 

harassment claims were taken out. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I understand. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  And that the course of conduct i dentified was 

then ignored. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Well, it is not ignored becaus e, for the 

reasons I have indicated, it was considered under t he heading 

of malice.  Anyway, that is your next point.  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Another point that we have, which  goes back 

again, the whole thing is all connected, that is th e problem.  

It goes back to the covert attacks that we were bei ng 

subjected to.  On paragraph 226.8 ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Sorry, 226 point?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  8, of the judgment. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes, hold on.  (Pause) Yes. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  It is the last sentence of that p oint where he 
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says that in his judgment the consistent thread of 

communication by the second defendant is to encoura ge people 

not to engage publicly with the claimants in relati on to 

allegations of what did or did not transpire in rel ation to 

the holiday in France. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  It was not a holiday but what is so confusing is 

we showed the judge page after page of evidence of the 

claimant telling people that, of the defendants tel ling people 

that it was our methods that had to be sort of, tha t we were 

untrustworthy and, for example, if you go back to 

paragraph 250 above, no below, sorry. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes, 250. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  At 250 the judge quotes a letter from the second 

respondent to Richy Thompson, a member of the BHA, the 

British Humanist Association, and he quotes just a small part 

of it.  What he does not say is that another part o f that very 

same email was her saying that it is best not to gi ve them any 

attention or RT their work, "I am occasionally forc ed into 

warning others if they are being prolific as they a re today".  

What we were doing on that day was promoting our wo rk on 

Steiner.  It had nothing to do with the respondents  in any 

way.  So, what she was doing was telling them, do n ot RT their 

work.  She told another person, Dan Duggan, an Amer ican who is 

a Steiner critic, that their working methods are un ethical and 
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they are untrustworthy and anything else is a distr action.  

There is email after email after email of that, of her saying 

that it is our work, like on paragraph 79 of the ju dgment 

where he quotes a long email that the second respon dent sent 

to the first respondent, it is a long email, I have  it on 

page 19 of that judgment. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Sorry, where are we talking ab out?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  It is paragraph 79 where it goes over multiple 

pages, so it is page 19 of the judgment. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I will find it.  Yes, it is ve ry long, I 

remember it, the 31st January. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes, that one. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  The "he" there is the first de fendant as I 

understand it. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  The second defendant wrote to the  first 

defendant. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  That email. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes, I have that. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  In that email he quotes, he uses that as an 

example and he says ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Sorry, who says?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Well, the second defendant says b ut the judge 

quotes that, "we are making it very clear that we e xpect ex 

Steiner parents to use their own identities to whis tle blow 
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the bad experiences at Steiner schools" and "if not  we feel" I 

am changing it to us "we feel pressure should be br ought to 

bear on these families to come clean."

That is a horrendous accusation which we showed at the 

hearing that this was not true.  They could not fin d us making 

it very clear or even insinuating or anything that we tried to 

blackmail people to people or put pressure on them to come 

clean. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  In fact we made anonymising vide os to hide 

their identity. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  So this is all about our work, tr ying to kick us 

off the platform that they wanted to keep for thems elves.  The 

judge himself said ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  But the judge's point is that this is their 

platform, they can do what they like with it.  They  do not 

have to publish your material if they do not want - --- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Absolutely but you see, we were p ublishing on 

our own. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Right. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Our work, we were promoting our o wn work and 

they were telling people do not look at it, don't p romote it, 

don't RT it, they were untrustworthy.  That is what  she said 

to Richy Thompson which was partially quoted in par agraph 250, 

"it is best not to give them any attention or RT th eir work".

What she said here to the first defendant is that w e 
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were trying to essentially blackmail survivors of S teiner, not 

for us to publish on their platform, they do not ow n Steiner 

criticism.  It is just she was telling him this, a complete 

lie, to say that we are dangerous people and not to  be 

trusted.  

What shocks me is that even though we showed in cou rt 

that this was a lie and many parts of this email we re complete 

fabrications, the judge nevertheless published it i n his 

judgment and it is taken to be the truth because it  does not 

say that this was shown to be deconstructed and not  true at 

court.  So, anybody who ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I think what he says about it is that ---- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  He did not say anything about it ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Just let me point out paragrap h 80, this is 

vehemently expressed, that on the other hand what i t was 

suggesting was, "the claimants have published accus ations and 

attacks against her personally, including accusatio ns of 

grooming", which they had. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  That is not true either. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Well, there we are. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  We will get to that in a second, your Honour. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Well, it is going to have to b e rather sooner 

than that because ---- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  I will be very fast.  What I am s aying is here 

--- 
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LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I can't sit much longer than h alf past four. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Okay.  The judge published an ema il and within 

it were things that were shown to be lies and if an ybody reads 

a judgment when you read a judgment and the judge q uotes 

something from the judgment you expect it to be the  truth.  

Unless the judge says ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  No, I mean, I do not think you  are right 

about that.  He is simply setting out in his judgme nt 

something that was said by one party which was thou ght to be 

relevant. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  In this email she also says at on e point that a 

journalist contacted her because apparently we had sent that 

journalist an email saying that she had sexually mo lested our 

child.  That is not true.  That never happened.  Th ere is no 

such email.  They could not find it.  It is all a f abrication. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  It was at the point where we wer e going to 

reveal that it did not exist that we were interrupt ed so we 

could not prove it. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay.  

SECOND APPLICANT:  Your Honour, the lack of attenti on to the 

course of conduct of the respondents has resulted i n an 

injustice, this is something that could happen to a nybody.  At 

the beginning of it in the first part where we were  mobbed, 

which the judge said it was robust debate, where pe ople were 

saying things like, "oh look, you want to out paren ts and make 
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them come out by making anonymising videos".  I mea n it does 

not even make sense.  During that -- we can find th e bits 

where she was there -- he said that the idea that h er silence 

was aggressive was remarkable.  We can show you the  research 

on shunning and how ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I have seen what you say about  that. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  It is all about aggressive silen ce. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Half way through that she said e veryone, at the 

beginning she said, "everyone should be told they a re not 

entirely trustworthy".  Half way through she said, "If only 

Steve could defend himself", "If only matters in Fr ance were 

mentioned he could defend himself" she was perfectl y well 

aware that she, by not communicating her part in an y situation 

was creating a horrible situation for us.  

At the end of it she wrote a mock comment that was not 

published which said "from now on" she is mimicking  us "from 

now on we will only be able to defend our reputatio ns" and 

here we are at ten past four on 22nd March, years l ater, still 

saying that this was entirely to prevent us from be ing able to 

have any ordinary debate by anything and we have no t been able 

to.  

If we are not allowed an appeal that will not chang e the 

injustice, your Honour.  It is not helpful to bulli ed children 

either.  Yes, "she is about to blow I expect, like a whale", I 
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mean honestly she might as well have had popcorn -- -- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  This was all happening in the bac kground while 

we were being attacked openly ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Just before my mother died which  is why she 

offered to help us. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I understand that. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Then after that it became, "oh, she is selfish" 

because my mother needed me to look after her in a particular 

way which is why they had offered their help in the  first 

place.

Should people who are doing a whistle blowing thing , you 

know, we did not know that we were going to be doin g that, but 

addressing something and creating agency for bullyi ng, be 

subject of this kind of behaviour by influential Br itish 

bloggers, so that debate is stage-managed and under neath they 

are keeping us in the basement and then when we try  to go to 

court, because it is covert there is all this confu sion about 

whether the claim should be allowed, but it is real , it is all 

there.  

We have been subject to this now for five years.  I t has 

had the exact effect on us that you would expect it  to do, 

which the judge has then taken as being an attack. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Because the original attack was o verlooked. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Hidden, it was hidden.  So, beca use they 

behaved in a deceitful manner they are now going to  be 
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rewarded with our home and, this is not what Britis h courts 

are for, is it, to give people, to take away the ho mes of 

people that have tried to achieve agency for bullyi ng because 

some influential bloggers did not like us and did n ot want us 

to join in the debate, not on their blog, I underst and that.  

Andy Lewis has got every right not to let us commen t, at the 

time he was operating a public comment policy that he accepted 

comments from anybody and that our point, which the  judge did 

not understand, was we were not saying he had to le t us 

comment, but we were saying that if he was operatin g the 

policy where he was telling the public that he was accepting 

comments but that he was not really, then that is a  matter 

that perhaps people should know. 

After that we did not publish, we never tried to pu blish 

on his blog again but we were told in the judgment,  "We have 

had lip service to publishing elsewhere" even thoug h the 

defence is only full of our publication s.  How is this 

possible?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  That is wrong.  There is, we need  to talk about 

I guess the elephant in the room which is the groom ing quote 

because we said that the second defendant had groom ed our 

child because we conditioned it, we know it is a ve ry strong 

word but there are multiple meanings.  After her so n left, 

when she stopped communicating with us, my wife wro te to her 

six times over a number of days getting more and mo re puzzled 
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and frantic as to why they were not responding to u s.  

At one point she says, "I feel I have been crushed by 

rocks by this silence.  I am starting to feel a lit tle 

concerned, what is wrong?  What have we done?" Beca use we 

could not understand it.  As far as we were concern ed we had 

resolved the situation.  The son left when he wante d.  We 

discussed this ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Sorry, the son, what?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  The first defendant's, the second  defendant's 

son who had stayed with us in France. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Yes, I understand. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Left when he wanted. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  I wasn't there ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Let us not go in to all that b ecause the 

judge regarded that as background he dealt with it fairly 

fully.  You said that the second defendant had groo med your 

child. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  That is correct. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  No, we didn't say ---- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Not in the way the judge has said  that we said 

it because you see ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  How else is that to be taken?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  There are many ways to take it.  For example, 

there is a book out there that says that big compan ies groom 

our children for profit.  There is no insinuation t here that 
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they are sexually abusing the children.  They are g rooming 

them for profit. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  May I explain this?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Yes. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  The thing is, after these five e mails, six 

emails that I had written her to try and sort this out in 

private the next thing that happened was on a blog of her 

friend there was a woman who turned up, apparently in a state 

of distress about a Steiner School and she was all over her 

saying, "oh, you know, you could not have known tha t" it was, 

it was just unbelievable that she had done that to us and now 

she just dumped our child.  I don't know what you w ould call 

it if it is not grooming-type behaviour, your Honou r, because 

she literally made all these offers and in fact wha t we ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Can you just point to where in  the judgment 

the judge dealt with this?  

SECOND APPLICANT:  He mentioned it ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Maybe Mr. Price can help. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  ---- 18 times in his judgment.

MR. PRICE:  It is paragraph two hundred (unclear) ---- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  He mentioned it 18 times in his - --- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Just one moment.   (Pause) Thank you. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  So, I am afraid that Mrs. Byng, having made 

these offers and then blanked us for no reason, no explanation 

at all at a time where she knew that my mother was dying and 
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my child was school averse, which is why she appare ntly had 

made these offers, led us to write what we wrote wh ich was 

that she had made these healing offers of help to r eengage her 

with the school and sending her son out with the me ssage that 

he came really only to talk to the daughter about h is 

wonderful school in the country.  This was an eleve n year old 

child that she was communicating through with her s on.  When 

she then cut off communication why wouldn't we cons ider that 

that had been grooming behaviour?  It was exploitat ive in the 

extreme.  She has never denied doing it but the thi ng, the 

point that what the judge said comes straight from the 

respondents' solicitors who basically just ---- 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Misquoted. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Well, they chopped up the senten ce and put a 

full stop after grooming in order to make it into s ome kind of 

sexual, scurrilous thing which they knew perfectly well that 

it was not.  We do not recognise that as what we wr ote, your 

Honour, and we can't because it is not what we wrot e.  They 

have removed two thirds of the sentence and they pu t that in 

front of the judge and he has been completely misle d by it 

into thinking it was something that it was not.  It  is 

unbelievable that they should be allowed to get awa y with it. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  May I add that the judge ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Well, that is not a ground of appeal that you 

have raised. 
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SECOND APPLICANT:  No, I understand that but the po int is that 

they slammed in an article we wrote in here on that  basis 

because they are complaining that we ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay, I think we have probably  traversed as 

much material as we can.  Do you want to sort of su mmarise 

what your grounds are?  

FIRST APPLICANT:  Regarding that quote, your Honour . 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Do not get too distracted by t he quote.  I 

put it in terms of the limbs of the judgment, the d egree of 

publication, the meaning of the words, whether they  are 

defamatory, whether they are justified, there is a defence 

qualified privilege malice.  

SECOND APPLICANT:  The judge said himself that he d id not consider 

that justification was fully made out.  The point i s that ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I have seen that. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  ---- he should have not have giv en them 

qualified privilege for these reasons:  (1) that th ere was a 

course of conduct under the surface which was as ou r expert 

witness said, that they set out to do a harm.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I saw a reference to Mr. Bisho p.  Did he give 

evidence?  

SECOND APPLICANT:  No, he has only put this in ----  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I saw that he said something w hich plainly an 

expert should not say, so perhaps for that reason h is evidence 

was not called. 
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SECOND APPLICANT:  No, we did not know him then.  W e did not have 

an expert witness, we did not honestly ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Who is then, who is Mr. Bishop ?  

SECOND APPLICANT:  He is an academic and an expert in cyber 

harassment. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Was he called at trial?  

SECOND APPLICANT:  We did not know of him then. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I see. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Right.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  There is a reference to ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  If we have an appeal then he pro bably will be 

called. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  No, he probably will not be ca lled if you 

have an appeal. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  He won't?  Right, okay.  Your Ho nour, erm, they 

set out to do us harm and you can see in their disc losure that 

they loved doing us harm.  They want us to scream i nto the 

void, they knew nobody is reading our stuff, they a re much 

more powerful than us.  If it was under the 2013 Ac t they 

would be expected to be much more robust about anyt hing that 

we wrote.  In BCA ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That might be said about you t oo. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  We are not public figures, we ar e a family that 

tried to do something about bullying. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Nor are they public figures fo r the purposes 
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of the ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Well, they have been in the pres s, they have 

been in the national press several times on the sub ject of 

Steiner Schools so they are much more public figure s than we 

are.  

We consider that, my Lord, we have to submit that u nless 

this is dealt with as a course of conduct either in  background 

to defamation and including numerous private defama tion 

alongside the heads that were in the claim, then wh at happens 

then is that anybody can just target anyone, cut of f public 

debate by not offering right of reply and not takin g their own 

right to reply.  Then, spreading around these evil rumours 

under the surface which because the effects of shun ning are to 

make people respond and react quite, in some cases,  violently, 

but people feel very horrible to be excluded from a  debate.  

We are not talking about writing on some particular  

person's blog.  We are just talking about being abl e to be 

included in it at all.  That this is something that  is not in 

the public interest at all to allow people to behav e like that 

and the representative of the respondents have enjo yed huge 

public influence and approval for being champions o f free 

speech and upholding open publication, whereas here  they are 

defending a covert campaign of harassment which sho uld be 

criminal, your Honour, because the standard of proo f is beyond 

reasonable doubt.  
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They did tell people on email that I was a danger t o 

people.  If that is not criminal then that is just dangerous.  

How can that not be criminal when it is proven to t hat extent?  

If I did it I would know it was a criminal act. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay.  Is there anything else?   

SECOND APPLICANT:  Please grant an appeal to this. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  That I understand, that is the  nature of your 

application. 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Please put the costs order aside  because our 

family is losing their home because we had to come and try and 

address this which meant crossing the world. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Two more things then, the judge h as said that 

Twitter is ephemeral, it is not.  Twitter is not ep hemeral, it 

is easy to find, it is searchable through Google -- -- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I think the point is that if y ou look for it 

you may be able to find it, you may not but you may  be able to 

find it but I think his point is that nobody is goi ng to 

bother to look at that ----

FIRST APPLICANT:  Well, we do not know that. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  ---- because the nature of Twi tter is 

ephemeral and therefore you do not go searching for  past 

grievances ---- 

SECOND APPLICANT:  Can I just say ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  No, I think I have heard from you enough.  I 

will hear from your husband now. 
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FIRST APPLICANT:  Okay.  The judge said that he cou ld find, for 

example, no evidence that the defendants had stalke d us but in 

that email to Richy Thompson that I quoted you, she  said, "I 

have to warn people when they are being prolific" h ow would 

she know unless she was stalking us.  So there was stalking.  

They knew we were in Venice.  

There is another point I want to make which I do no t 

understand regarding jurisdiction.  If somebody is not in a 

case, your Honour, they are not obliged to disclose  anything, 

am I correct?  Because he exonerated Richard Byng b y saying 

that he could not find any emails from him in discl osure.  He 

was not in the case.  He couldn't have ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  It is not a question of exoner ating Dr. Byng; 

he was not a party. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Exactly, but he pretty much said that because 

there was no writing from him it was not called for  for us to 

write to his boss.  We never wrote to him to ask hi m to lose 

his job, we asked for help.  But the problem is tha t he may 

not have been a party but he was fully involved.  H e said in 

his witness statement that he was involved.  Actual ly, 

ironically, the police, when we talked to the polic e about 

what was happening to us they said, "why don't you contact his 

boss?" And the judge really punished us for that, b ut his 

wife's disclosure shows that he was involved first of all, 

"Richard is going to write to Dan".  At the end of the day it 
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is his clinical judgment she seems to have forgotte n he ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Mr. Paris, this is really a si de issue. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  It is not because it is all about  the attacks 

that we were having in the background you see, your  Honour.  

We were ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  They were not attacks from Dr.  Byng. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  At the end of the day it is his c linical 

judgment which she seems to have forgotten.  What c linical 

judgment?  She is not a patient of Dr. Byng.  Essen tially, it 

is all those attacks like I keep saying, I mean, Ga tley says, 

you can't ignore the first one because otherwise th e people 

are benefiting from their own wrong and I really wo uld submit 

by ignoring, by overlooking all of the covert attac ks that 

they have on us, which were not just about France, which was 

all about making us disappear from the platform of standard 

criticism because they did not want us there so the y would 

tell people not to have anything to do with us, tha t we were 

dangerous, contrary to what the judge says that the re is no 

evidence, this is a repeat of it and I have given y ou a couple 

of examples.  

By ignoring all this, our defence is that we wrote to 

defend ourselves because we do not know who they we re talking 

to.  We knew, we could see by people, other people were 

telling us that things were being said, so we thoug ht we need 

to set the record straight, therefore we publish to  say this 
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is the record and offered right of reply at all tim es.  By 

ignoring their attack our defence has been turned i nto an 

attack on them.  

Then they have what comes afterwards which is a ret ort 

which we should have qualified privilege for.  This  is really 

crucial, that is why I keep hammering the point, yo ur Honour, 

because all the lies that they have said about us t o get us to 

be kicked off the platform.  They do not own it.  A nybody can 

do it.  They are way more influential than us becau se we only 

just started going online when we met the second de fendant.  

We are in an uphill struggle and we were pushed dow n by 

them covertly.  All the covert attacks have been ov erlooked.  

They have been rewarded for having done it all cove rtly.  They 

have been, they have profited from their own wrong and 

apparently, well, Gatley says you cannot do that. 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay.  I am going to ask Mr. P rice one 

question in relation to the republication of the fi rst blog of 

9th November in April 2013; did the judge deal with  that?  

MR. PRICE:  My Lord, at 237 what in fact the judge finds is that 

the, well, it was not defamatory in so far as it is  dealt with 

the ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  There were two parts of it, we re there not? 

MR. PRICE:  Yes, so the school issue he found ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  He had earlier found that it w as not 

defamatory at the time that it was published.  Did he make any 
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finding about it after there had been a resolution of the 

dispute between the school and the claimants?  

MR. PRICE:  I think that that is dealt with at 235 and 236, I 

found it was not defamatory and he also finds it di d not 

become defamatory simply because there may have bee n a change 

in circumstances.  Even if it was rendered inaccura te by a 

change in circumstances that does not bring into pl ay the 

principle in Flood and Loutchansky, to which I think reference 

is made, because it does not matter for the purpose s of 

defamation if something is simply wrong, unless it is also 

defamatory. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  Your Honour, at 237 the judge say s again the 

mistake that he moved that article about us along w ith all the 

other material ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  I am not concerned with the ot her material. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  I know but that means that is not  true, he 

selectively chose.  The human rights settlement tha t we did 

get which showed that our daughter had been bullied , surely it 

goes against when the first defendant said that we claim our 

children was bullied.  "We claim", the natural and ordinary 

reading of the word means to say something without providing 

any proof.  

Well, we had proof before, we had all our publicati on 

published online, all our email communication onlin e once our 

children had been expelled.  But now we have a huma n rights 
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settlement, a settlement from a respectable body th at said 

that our child had been bullied at that school so, therefore, 

"claim" says, the parents claim the children were b ullied, 

which says they say this without providing any proo f ---- 

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Okay. 

FIRST APPLICANT:  ---- is not true.  

LORD JUSTICE SIMON:  Thank you very much.  

(For judgment see separate transcript)


